
166 General Alsembly - Twenty-ninth Session - Fifth Com:nittec 

conformity with the principles of rational distribution and 
economy. At the same time, due consideration should also 
be given to Asian, African and Latin Arnerican regions, 
according to the same principle, in detennining the pattern 
of conferences and the accommodation of United Nations 
organizations. 

57. Mr. TARDOS (Hungary) said that the report of the 
Joint Inspection Unit on the pattern of conferences was 
weil documented and contained a number of feasible 
recommendations, the most important one being to estab
lish a new committee on conferences authorized to make 
binding decisions on requests to alter the approved calendar 
of conferences. His delegation agreed with the recom
mendation; when the old committee had been set up, he 
had pointed out that without authority to make binding 
decisions it was doomed to failure. The new committee 
should be compact; its composition might well follow the 
pattern of the Ad vis ory Committee but its members should 
be government representatives, since that would make the 
committee's work more flexible and Jess expensive. 

58. The inspectors' report and the memorandum of the 
Austrian Govemment dealt with the extension of the 
conference programme in Vienna. His Government highly 
appreciated the generous offer of the Govemment of 
Austria to provide the United Nations and IAEA with new 
office buildings and a large conference area; the new 
buildings would undoubtedly facilitate the work of the 
organizations there. However, he saw no need to declare in 
a fonnal resolution the inclusion of Vienna in the pattern 
of conferences, since Vienna had been part of that pattern 
for a long time. lt was clear that it was not lack of 
conference rooms but Jack of conference servicing staff th at 
constituted the bottle-neck in conference programme plan
ning. Consequently, he shared the view of the Advisory 
Committee that extension of the meetings programme in 
Vienna should be exarnined in the context of the office 
space available there for secretariat units over and above the 
rcasonable needs of UNIDO and IAEA. 

59. Therefore hi<, delegation consider.' d that the Austrian 
invitation to makc full use of the off >!)ace available in 
Vienna in 1978 sh0uld be acccptc ù in~ . . nc iple and that the 
Secretary-General should enter into negl) tiations with the 
Government of Austria and IAEA with a view tn cbrifying 
the points needed for a final decision at the thirtieth session 
of the General Assembly. lt would a\so be desirable ta 
decide not later than 1976 which units of the Secretariat 
would be transferred to Vienna so that the pattern of 
conferences for the biennium 1978-1979 could be planned 
accordingly and Vienna duly incorporated. !lis del<!gation 
supported the view that in the meantime more conferences 
and meetings should be held in Vienna, on the undcr
standing that the extra costs would be cuvcred by the 
Austrian Government. 

60. His delegation was also in agreement with the other 
recommendations of the Advisory Committce in paragraph 
44 of its comments on the inspectors' report. Sorne of 
those recommendations, together with sorne of the recom
mendations in the report of the Joint Inspection Unit, 
required further action by the Secretary-General and sorne 
by the new committee on conferences when established. 
His delegation would welcome a statement from the 
representative of the Secretary-General concerning the 
practical implementation of the recommendations con
tained in paragraph 44 of the Advisory Comrnittce's report 
and chapt er Vil of the inspectors' report. 

61. FinaUy, he wished to raisc two questions in connexion 
with Ge neva conference capacity: since with the opening of 
the new building there were more conference rooms 
available than were required, was there any plan to convert 
sorne of the old conference rooms into offices or to other 
uses? Secondly, wh y was temporary shortage of electric 
power, instead of a more realistic reason, given as an 
explanation for the fact that conference rooms XIX and 
XX in the new building had not been operational during the 
who le of 1974? 

The meeting rose at 5.45 p. m. 

1660th meeting 
Tue!day,l2 November 1974, at 11.45 a.m. 

Chairman: Mr. Costa P. CARANICAS (Greece). 

AGENDA ITEM 77 

Pattern of conferences (continued) (A/9589/Rev.l, A/9603 
(cha p. VI, sect. H), A/9768 and Corr.l, A/9795 and 
Add.l and 2): 

(a) Report of the Joint Inspection Unit (continued) 
(A/9795 and Add.l and 2); 

(b) Report of the Secretary-General (continued) (A/9768 
and Corr.l) 

1. Mr. AI..CONCEL (Philippines) said thal since 1952, the 
General Assembly had been trying to rationalize the 
growing number of United Nations meetings and confer· 

A/C.5/SR.I660 

ences, which meant that for 22 years it had bee~ 
attempting to lay d0wn principles goveming the dates an 
venues of meetings. His delegation was concerned by the 
proliferation of meetings and conferences because of the 
severe drain on the scarce financial resources of th~ 
Organization, exacerbated by the increase in the volume 0 

documentation. 

2. His delegation had noted with satisfaction the report ~f 
the Joint Inspection Unit (see A/9795) and agreed with; 1~ observation in paragraph 33 that many Governments ~ . 
that there were too many councils, commissions, conunlt 

· · serv· tees and working groups holding meetings requmng 



16601h meeting- 12 Novrmbt>r 1974 167 

-----==~~~~~~~~~~----------~ icing by the Secretariat. The Special Committee on the cstJhlish a committce on conferences with tcrms of 
Rationalization of the Procedures and Organization of the reference which would enable it to rationalize the confer-
General Assembly had suggested in its report 1 thal the A 

1 
Id c_nce programme. t the twenty-fourth session, his delcga-

Assemb y shou periodically review the continuing nced !lon had exprcssed regret that the Committec on Confer-
for organs which had outlivcd thcir usefulness. While his ences establishcd in 1966 did not have a finn and 
delegation agrced th at such organs should be climinatcd comprehensive mandate, which had led to ils demise . fic 
great care should be exercised in merging subsidiary organ~ agreed_ with the Advisory Committce th at, should a 
having specifie mandates, particularly those dcaling with comm1ttee on conferences be establishcd, the General 
economie and social activities. Each individual organ should Assembly should approve in full the recommendations of 
be examined_ in the over-all context of the volume, scope the Inspection Unit containcd in ehapter V of its report . 
and complexJty of the work of the United Nations. The committcc should be composed of 15 mcmhcrs 

3. As the Joint Inspection Unit had recommended no 
subsidiary body of the General Asscmbly should c:eate 
intersessional subsidiary bodies without prior approval from 
the Assembly. The Inspection Unit had also pointed out _the 
deficiencies in the calendar of conferences with regard to 
the timing, duration and location of meetings: his delega
tion believed that the calcndar should be prepared system
atically and efficiently by an appropria te machinery in order 
to a void unnecessary costs. That measure had be come ali the 
more urgent an~ necessary because the number of meetings 
in New York and Geneva cxcecded the combined capacity 
of the Secretariat to handle them. The Ad /loc Commit tee 
of Expert s to Examine the Finances of the United Nations 
and the Spccial ized Agencies had expressed a similar view in 
a series of recommendations set out in its second reportl 
and reproduced in paragraph 54 of the Unit's report. 

4. One of the most pressing problems was the shortage of 
highly qualified conference staff. In that connexion, it was 
encouraging to note that the Secretary-Gcncral had taken 
steps to expand training programmes, but since that was a 
long-term measure , it could not be expected to eliminate 
the short age of language staff right away. One solution 
would be to recruit on a permanent basis free-lance 
interpreters with the experience enabling them to service 
any type of conference. Meanwhile , the Office of Personnel 
Services should se nd teams to various parts of the world to 
recruit competent interpretees. At the same time, Govcrn
ments should make an effort to publicize United Nations 
needs for conference staff in their respective countries and, 
if possible, encourage the organization of training pro· 
grammes . 

S. At the current session, the General Assembly had 
bef ore it an important proposai to establish a committee on 
conferences, which his delegation regarded as essential in 
formulating a systematic and rational pattern of confer
ences adaptable to available resources. 1t agreed with the 
Joint Inspection Unit that the Secretariat was not in a 
position to choose between competing demands of inter· 
govemmcntal bodies in drawing up the calendar of confer
ences or to overrule them regarding changes in the dates 
and venues for conferences or to overrule them regarding 
changes in the dates and venues for conferences and 
meetings. Nor could the Advisory Committee on Adminis
trative and Budgetary Question, which was not an inter
govemmental body, take decisions on the issue, as past 
experience had demonstrated . 1t was therefore essential to 

S 1 Official Records of the General Assembly, Twenty-sixth Session, 
upplement No. 26, para . 313. 

A/
2 1bid., Twenty-fint Session, Annexes, agenda item 80, document 
6343. 

selccted by Governments of Member States and should 
work in close co-operation with the Advisory Committec. 
In cstablishing its terms of reference, aecount should be 
laken of recommcndation 3 relating to the committce's 
role, in chapter VII of the Unit's report. 

6. His delegation had noted with great apprt>ciation the 
offer of the Austrian Government to accommodate certain 
units of the United Nations Secretariat in Vienna. The 
statement made by the representative of Austria at the 
I 658th meeting indicated that the pre mises offered would 
be made available to the United Nations on a pemt:ment 
basis, and the Austrian offer should be accepted. lt would 
assure the United Nations of sufficicnt spacc for ils 
expanding staff in the years to corne. (urrently, howevrr, 
his delegation rescrved its position on the issue of making 
Vienna a third conference centre on a levet comparable to 
thal of New York and Geneva, pcnding the submissiun of 
the Secretary-General's statement on the administrative and 
fmancial implications of the project. llis delegation wuuld 
like to know, for instance, what units could be idcally 
situated in Vienna, how the costs of the space allottcd to 
them would be apportioned between the United Nations 
and IAEA and what extra costs would have to be borne by 
the United Nations after 1978. The Austrian Government 
nùght also submit to the Committee, at the thirtieth 
session , a report on the availability of interpretation staff at 
the new conference centre and of hot el accommodations on 
a year-round basis. Pending the establishment of the 
committee on conferences, which would be engaged in 
rationalizing the pattern of conferences, the existing ar
rangements for holding certain meetings in Vienna should 
continue, taking into account the views of the Advisory 
Committee in paragraph 43 of its report (A/9795/ i\dd.2). 

7. Mr. SIL VEIRA DA MOT A (Brazil) sa id th at the report 
of the Joint Inspection Unit was of undoubted value in 
drawing the attention of Member States to problems which 
would seem to require prompt remediai action. It also 
described in detail the difficulties repeatedly encountered 
by the United Nations in organizing meetings and confer
ences. His delegation had studied the report with intercst, 
together with the related reports of the Secretary-General 
and the Advisory Committee. 

8. It was his delegation's impression that the inspcctors 
should have laid greater stress on a fact which they had 
mentioned in passing in the foreword to their report, 
nam ely, that conferences did not have an existence pcr se, 
but were a consequence of the continuous interplay of 
international activities. They took place cssentially becausc 
they were the indispensable multilateral forums in whiclt 
Member States could get together and air their intercsts and 
views on the problems of the day. They therefore played a 



168 General Assembly - Twenty-ninth Session - Fifth CommiUce 

vital role, whlch was closely linked with the dynamic and 
fluid aspects of international aff airs and therefore was itself 
quite fluid. The expansion of the pattern of conferences 
chie fly indicated the growing in terdependence of the 
international community . Consequent) y, the Commit tee 
should never Jose sight of the fact that, even if the calendar 
of conferences gcnerated heavy costs and strained the 
human resources of the Secretariat and participating dele
gations, it was not an anomaly, but a necessity of the 
United Nations system, and attempts to rationalize or 
control conference activities should not disregard the 
legitimate aspirations from which they arose. 

9. Of course, absolu te systematization was impossible, but 
there were still areas in which improvements could be 
made. ln paragraphs 79 to 85 of their report, the inspectors 
suggested thal psychological factors accounted for the 
failure of the General Assembly to apply strict discipline to 
the programming of conferences . There again, the inspec
tors had perhaps minimized the importance of an essential 
fa ct , nam ely, that the broad demands of international 
political, economie and social tife could not always be 
tailored to suit administrative tidiness. To put the biarne for 
that on an assumed psychological disinclination on the part 
of delegations to face up to their responsibilities was an 
exaggeration which tended to obscure, if not falsify, the 
issue . 

10. In paragra phs 186 to 190 of the ir report, the 
inspectors gave a clear illustration of the situation in 
Geneva and New York in connexion with what seemed to 
be the main stumbling-block, namely, the provision of 
interpretation services. The remarks of the inspectors on 
that subject formed the ba sis of their recommendation 4 in 
chapter VIl, and his delegation had no difficulty in 
supporting the practical steps recommended therein . _It 
particularly welcomed the recommendation that the Secre
tariat, in CO-()peration with the specialized agencies, should 
arrange for adequate training programmes for interpretcrs, 
should broaden their recruitment policies and intensify 
thcir recuritment efforts, should seek governmental assist
ance in finding candidates and should review their grading 
standards - probably including salary levels-for interpretees 
in order to make certain thal those would attract qualified 
candidates. With regard to the difl1culties mentioned in 
paragraphs 163 to 165 of the report conceming Russian
language interpretees, his delegation hoped that the 
Moscow Pedagogical lnstitute for Foreign Languages would 
take urgent steps to increase the number of Russian
language interprerers produced for United Nations use; an 
average of three interpretees per year scemed skimpy 
indeed, especially · when it was considercd that the United 
Nations contributed to the financing of the lnstitute from 
its regular budget, $214,000 having been contributed for 
the current bicnnium. lt was to be hoped that the number 
of interpretees which the lnstitute anticipated training in 
1974 and 1975 - 6 and 10 respectively-would be not only 
attained, but surpassed. His delegation had also heard with 
interest the announcement by the representative of Austria 
that the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of his country had 
decided to set up a special training programme for 
conference interpretees to start in April 1975. 

11 . His delegation shared the astonishment of the inspec· 
tors regarding CO-()rdination betwecn Headquarters and the 

United Nations Office at Gcneva which was discussed in 
paragraphs 195 to 207 of the report. Judging from the 
concrete cxamples furnished by the Joint Inspection Unit, 
the picture was one of such confusion that it would be 
comical if it werc not so regrettable, and it should be 
remedied without delay. His delegation therefore un re. 
servedly supported recommendation 6 of the inspectors. 

12. On the other ha nd, his delegation could not endorse 
the observations of the inspectors about the possibility of 
biennial sessions of the General Assembly, contained in 
paragraphs 257 to 270 of their report. ft was true t~at the 
inspectors had not issued a straightforward recommenda· 
tion on the matter, but they had raised the question. His 
delegation was no more convinced of the soundness of such 
a measure today than it had been in 1966, when taking part 
in the work of the Ad /loc Committec of Experts. TI1at 
position was not motivated by considerations relating to 
the experimental adoption of a biennial budget cycle or by 
the fear of a decline of public interest in the work of the 
United Nations. To begin with , it obviously would not 
make sense to judge the General Asscmbly in terms of 
manpower and costs alone; if pursued to the extreme, the 
logic of that reasoning would lead to the abolition of the 
General Assembly so that maximum savings could be 
achieved in that area . The Assembly represcnted much 
more than the formai action it took in voting on resolu· 
tions. lt also generated a renewal of faith in and commit· 
ment to the purposes and principles of the Charter thal far 
exceeded concerns of a managerial or fin an cial order. In the 
autumn of each year it brought together representatives of 
Member States from almost the entirc planet, providing 
them with a unique opportunity for joint cndeavours alsa 
on a bilateral Jevcl. Those rcsults could not be quantified 
and had a significance far beyond the cost - however high it 
might be-of the hum an and material resourccs expended to 
make them possible. Ile was confident that those consider· 
ations would be sufficicnt to discourage any initiative ta 
alter the annual schedulc of General Assembly sessions as 
establishcd in the Charter. 

13. ln severa] paragraphs of thcir report, chiefly in 
paragraphs 317 to 334, the inspcctors addressed themsel~es 
to the International Law Commission. His delegatiOn 
differed with their approach and their conclusions. In 
attempting to improve its rnethods and organizatian of 
work, the inspectors had failed to take into account the 
special expert status of the Commission and had drawn 
analogies with other bodies which had certain specifie goals. 
The Joint Inspection Unit seemcd to have bcen unaware of 
the complex and delicate task involvcd in formulating rules 
of international law, and its report appearcd to be based on 
the premise that the number of legal texts produced w~ 
directly proportionate to the amount of time spent araun 
a table - a rationale which could perhaps be appiied ta t~e 
manufacture of consumer goods, but not to the work of 1 he 
International Law Commission, whose membcrs broug .1 

many years of study and accumulated knowledge to th~ 
deliberations. He noted that the relevant section of. 1 ~ 
inspectors' report was currently being discussed in the ~lX~ 
Committce, and he drew attention to chapter VI, secllOh~ h 

. C . . 3 W JC of the report of the lntcmahonal Law omnusssan, 
refuted the rccommendations of the inspectors: the Com· 

3 Ibid., Twenty·ninth Session, Supplement No. JO. 

-



1660th meeting- 12 Novcmber 1974 169 

mission had unanimously concluded th at its composition, 
procedures, methods of work and organizational patter~ 
wcre correct and appropriate and represcnted the most 
effective means to carry out the task entrusted to it by the 
General Assembly . The delegation of Brazil in the Six th 
Committee had firmly supported thal couclusion at the 
J 487th meeting of thal Committee and had addressed il self 
in unambiguous terms to the work of the inspectors . The 
delegation of Brazil in the Fifth Committee reiterated that 
stand and could not, therefore, agree with the recommen
dation of the Joint Inspection Unit concerning the Inter
national Law Commission. 

14. With regard to the limitation of major special confer
ences to a given number per year, his delegation was 
sceptical about the usefulness of adopting any rules to that 
effect. The inspectors themselves recalled that the number 
had initially been limited to one per year at the eighteenth 
session of the General Assembly, but th at th at decision had 
always remained a dcad letter. There was no certainty that 
the same situation would not occur if tl1e number was 
increased to five per year. If the Fifth Committee decided 
to adopt the suggestion of the inspectors, as reflected in 
recommendation 12, it should keep its fingers crossed. 

15 . The crux of the inspectors' report was, of course, th at 
there was need for a committee on conferences . Ali 
previous attempts to predetermine conference programming 
by establishing a special committee to deal with it had 
ended in failure. However, if the majority of the General 
Assembly dccidcd to imp1cment the recommendation of 
the inspectors and the Advisory Committee, his delegation 
would not abject, despite its scepticism as to ils value. ln 
any case, it would like to hear the views of other 
representatives on the creation of such a committee, its 
terms of reference and other pertinent matters . 

16. His delegation had studied the memorandum from the 
Govemment of Austria (A/9589/Rev.l, annex), and the 
statement made at the 1658th meeting by the representa
tive of Austria, with ali thP. interest thal the generous offer 
of his Government commanded. He would have wished that 
the Fiflh Committee might be in a position then and there 
to take a clear-<:ut decision on the two parts of the Austrian 
off er . llis delegation the re fore was disappointed th at the 
Secretary-General had not yet assessed the full implications 
of the possible installation of Secretariat units in Vienna. 
Attractive as the offer might appear, it would not be 
prudent for the United Nations to commit itself as to 
acccptance until its implications had been analysed and 
clarified . He would echo the preoccupations voiced at the 
1659th meeting by the representative of Trinidad and 
Tobago concerning the impact of any such decision 
regarding Vicnna on the policy of decentralization of the 
United Nations personnel structure, in view of the fact that 
the General Assembly had indicated in the past that such 
decentralization should include as a matter of preference 
the establishment of United Nations Wlits in developing 
countries. Consequently, his delegation would for the time 
being adhere to the cautious approach adopted by the 
Advisory Committee in paragraph 33 of its report (.A/ 
9795/Add.2). The possibility of using Vienna as a maJor 
conference centre had been more substantially analysed by 
the Joint Inspection Unit and by the Advisory Committee, 
but d1ere again the problcm was knowing exactly what the 

administrative and financial implications would be . The 
Inspection Unit and t11e Advisory Committee pointed out 
in thcir reports the uncertaintics which stiJl secmcd to 
cloud the promising prospects afforded by the Austrian 
invitation . Ail in ali, his delegation felt th at it would be too 
carly to go beyond the position adoptcd by the inspectors 
and the Advisory C'ommittee, whose recommendations it 
was inclined to endorse. Nevertheless , it trusted that the 
questions raised would reccive prompt answers so that in 
duc time the Assembly cou1d take a decision based on full 
knowlcdge of where the interests of the Organization lay. 

17. Subject to those criticisms and reservations, his dele
gation gencrally supported the conclusions of the inspcctors 
on the severa! points un der consideration, as modified by 
the Advisory Committee. 

18. Mr. DIPP GOMEZ (Dominican Republic) said he had 
been greatly impresscd by the statistic:al data provided to 
the Committee concerning documentation. meetings and, in 
general, the work performed by the DcpJrtmcnt of Con
ference Services. At the 1658th meeting the Under-Sccre
tary-General for Conference Services and Special Assign
ments had reportcd that 8,993 meetings of v:lrious kinds 
had been held in 1973, which amply testificd to the volume 
of work that both the Secretariat and delegations had to 
cope with. Those meetings could be dividcd into two 
categories : official meetings, included in the schedulc of 
conferences in response to formai decisions , a~~ informai 
meetings , su ch as those of the regional groups or of working 
groups. Both types of meeting were of importance to the 
activities and deliberations of United Nations organs . For 
instance, informai meetings were an opportunity for ex
changes of views which could help in solving certain 
problems. Ali meetings were providcd with a number of 
services by the Secretariat, but it should be notcd that 
informai meetings, although not receiving summary record 
covcrage, nevertheless achieved the desircd results. 

19. As things stood, the commi tt ce on conferences envis
aged by the Joint Inspection Unit might help to rationalize 
the organization of conferences of the United Nations and 
the specialized agencies and would no doubt enable bettcr 
use to be made of the services involved. Like the Joint 
Inspection Unit and the Advisory Committce, howev~r, he 
wondered whether such a committee would not be s1mply 
one more organ. To avoid the difficulties encountered by 
the previous Committee on Conferences and to achieve the 
desired results, the new committee shou1d have sufficient 
authority, not of course to decide on , but to recommend , 
effective measures thal would help the General Assembly 
and the relevant committees to solve the problems pre
sented by the pattern of conferences. 

20. His delegation had read with ~terest the text ?f the 
revised memorandum on the incluswn of V1enna .m tl~e 
pattern of conferences and on the daNcco~odatwn .m 
v· enna of additional units of the Unite at1ons secretanat 
~d had Jistened carefully to the explanations given by the 
representative of Austria . The Austrian Government's offer 
was very advantageous and, in \icw of current rentai costs, 
showed Jaudable generosity . The memor~ndum a iso showed 
thal the Austrian Government had cons1dc~cd the pr~blem 
of interpreters , and the question of ~choolmg for .chlldr~n 
of international civil servants and d1plomats statJOned m 



) 

170 General Assembly - Twenty-ninth Session- Fifth Committcc ___ ...=.:::.::..::::::.:.:==::.::.-..::...:....::.:..:..::....::.:..::...:...~:..::::...::...:..._~ ___________ , ___ _ 

Vienna. It was therefore an objective proposai. His delega
tion hoped the General Assembly would recommend that 
the Secretary-General should enter into negotiations with 
the Austrian Government and submit a fmal recommenda
tion on the question. 

21. ln conclusion, he paid a tribu te to the Secretariat staff 
concerned with the organization and servicing of confer
ences for the considerable task which they performed 
efficiently and competently. 

22. Mr. MURG (Romania) said that his delegation had 
studied with care the documents submitted to the Fifth 
Committee on the question of the pattern of conferences. 
The Joint Inspection Unit had proveù once again that it was 
trying to increase the effectiveness of United Nations 
programmes and to ensure more efficient use of the 
Organization 's human and financial resources. It was truc to 
say that the programme of conferences was of special 
importance to the United Nations, that it must be decided 
on jointly by the Member States and that it must be carried 
out subject to rigorous control by their Governmcnts. 

23. Accordingly, his delegation subscribed to the conclu
sions in chapter V of the Joint Inspection Unit's report 
concerning the need for a committee on conferences. That 
would be a judicious solution, since an organ of that kind 
could considcr the measures needed to ensure a bctter 
distribution of conferences, such as a general system of 
periodic quotas or an increase in the number of conference 
centres, as envisaged by his own delegation . lt could also 
suggest ways of ensuring that the United Nations had 
enough qualified interpreters available in the future . 

24 . According to the Charter, the General Assembly must 
make the fmal decision on the programme of conferences 
and on the practical arrangements for its implementation . 
Furthermore, the only committee in a position to submit 
recommendations on that question to the General Assem
bly was the Fifth Committee. However, it was <.pparrnt 
that neither the General Asscmbly nor the Fifth Committee 
could possibly consider the biennial programmes and 
annual calendars of conferences in detail. The support 
which the proposed committee on conferences cou ld 
pro vide to them in th at respect would be valuable, as long 
as it was properly structured and had real competence and 
sufficient authority. 

25. The Joint Inspection Unit's report gave an account of 
past efforts to achieve a more efficient distribution of 
conference service resources. lt also stressed a number of 
measures to be adopted in t11at regard, including total 
compliance with decisions conceming the dates and venues 
of meetings; elimination of the tenùency to hold meetings 
only in summer and at certain centres ; observance of 
time-tables and full use of the ti me allocated for meetings; 
reduction of the number of meetings to the absolutc 
minimum. Although thosc suggestions were reasonablc, his 
delegation would also like to recommend that, be fore an 
international meeting was convened, an in-dcpth analysis 
should be made of the utility of such a meeting and 
everything possible should be done to ensure that ils 
deliberations would actually produce the results antici
pated. 

26. As far as the inclusion of Vienn:~ in the pattern of 
United Nations conferences was concern~J, his delegation 
bearing in mind the need for a better knowledge of th~ 
different parts of the world and the importance of contacts 
between countries, had studicd with inte rest the revised 
Austrian memorandum and the conclusions contained in 
chapter VI of the Joint Inspection Unit's report. His 
delegation supported the proposai thal Vienna should be 
included in the United Nations pattern of conferences along 
with New York and Geneva. The efforts made to create 
adequate facilities in the Aust rian capital deserved the 
Committee's full attention. 

27. His delegation considered that the Jifficulties encoun
tered with regard to conference staff wrre of a temporary 
nature and could be overcome and that, in any event, they 
probably had nothing to d'? with wherc international 
meetings wcrc held. 

28. Mr. STUART (United Kingdom) said that his delega
tion subscrihed to the principles of sound economie 
management of the conference program me . ln the language 
of micro-economies, the marginal cost of an additional 
conference scheduled for a peak perioù was very high, since 
the cost reflected the necd for additional premiscs, equip· 
ment and man power. Consequcnt ly, the great est possible 
bencfit must be derived frcm fixcd costs by sprcading the 
Joad over periods wh en the demanJ was lower . If thal 
measure was not enough, the United Nations would have to 
allocatc additional resources to the conference programme. 
ln the case of man power, the Organ i1.ation was already 
facing difficultics which wc re not of a hudgetary nature ; as 
the Joint Inspection Unit pointed out in its report, there 
was a global shortagc of intcrprcters. 

29 . The problcm was thereforc not just how to restrain 
expenditure : it was th at of r&tion ing a scarce resource. His 
delegation thcreforc supported the rccommendation ofthe 
Joint Inspection Unit to revive the old committee on 
conferences with cnhanccù powers with regard to the 
holding :~nd schcduling of conferences. The fa il ure of the 
prcvious commit tee was not a reason for deciding against its 
rcvival. The comrnittee had to be made effective , for the 
;~ltern;~tivc w;~s the hreakJown of the whole conference 
system. 

30. llis delegation belicvcd thal the grnerous offer made 
by the Austrian Govrrnmcnt in its memo randum shou.ld be 
considere<! in the light of the conference resources avatlable 
to the United Nations system globally. Additional confer· 
cnce buildings would not so lve the nucia l shortage of 
interp(eters, but might rclieve the shortage of office 
accommodation for the Secretariat . 1\.s the report of the 
Joi~t Inspection Unit pointcù out ~ if units ?f the s.ec~~
tanat were moved to Vtenna, th at ctty would au tomattca Y 
play a larger rolc in the United Nations pattern of 
conferences, sincc the bodies serviced by those units ?[the 
Secretariat would normally be cxpected to meet at Vtenna. 
His deleg:~tion thcrefore urged an affim1ative response 1

.
0 

the off er, subject to the principles of sound economtC 
management. 

31. Mr. SAFRONCHUK (Union of Soviet Socialist .Re~ 
publics) observcd that expenditurc on conference s~Vl~ed 
absorbed 20 per cent of the appropriations in the 111 e 1 

J 



l660th meeting - 12 Nuvcmber 1974 
--------------------------------------~-----------------------------------

17l 

Nations budget . The Organi?.ation's activitics in that field 
should therefore be organized rationally and the rcsources 
assigncd to it should be used economically. 

32. His delegation supported the Joint Inspection Unit's 
major recommendation, which the Sccretary..Ceneral had 
a Iso approved, on the creation of a commit tee on confer· 
enccs to help the Secretary-General to organizc the pattern 
of conferences in a rational and economie way. 

33. In its report the Joint Inspection Unit drew attention 
to a number of short<omings in the organization of 
conferences. The number of meetings seemed to be increas
ing without restraint and decisions by intergovemmental 
bodies to create subsidiary bodies without the prior approval 
of the General Asscmbly were complctely disorganizing the 
work of the Departmcnt of Conference Services. His delega
tion therefore supported the proposai of the Joint Inspection 
Unit and the Advisory Committee that the General Asscm
bly should expressly decide thal no subsidiary body should 
be permitted to create cither standing or ad hoc interses· 
sional boJies without its prior approval. lt also supported 
the Aùvisory Committec's proposai for the periodical 
review of the numbcr, size and functions of subsidiary 
bodi.:s. It would also be uscful to study the number of 
mcmbcrs of cach of thosc bodies, ~ince any rise in their 
membership brought about an increasc in the number and 
length of their meetings. His delegation therefore whole
heartedly supported the proposai made by the Joint 
Inspection Unit in paragraph 83 of its report for a special 
study on the question of the optimum size of subsidiary 
bodies . The ir size could easily be red uced without affecting 
the quality of the ir work or the observance of the principle 
of geographical distribution. lt also welcomed the proposai 
made by the Sccretary·General and supported by the 
Advisory Committee to establish a quota system for 
meetings, whether recurrent or special, in each major field. 
The system would not, of course, apply to meetings of the 
Security Council, which should have at its disposai penna· 
nently ali the neccssary services to enable it to discharge its 
responsihilitics properly. The number of unofficial meetings 
shoulJ be reduced, particularly th ose which required full 
conference services. 

34 . In resolution 2609 (XXIV) the General Assembly h.ad 
decided that there should not be more than one maJOr 

special conference a year. ln recent years, however, that 
principle had not been observcd . The Advisory Committee 
had recommendcd that the number of major special 
conferences should be set at a maximum of three a year, 
but his delegation could not accept that proposai and 
considered that the General Asscmbly should abide by the 
principle it had laid down earlicr. lt supported the Advisory 
Committee's recommendation to maintain and strictly 
enforce the principle requiring Governments which invited 
United Nations bodies to meet in their countries to de fray 
the additional costs involved. lt also supported the principle 
thal United Nations bodies should meet at the location of 
their respective headquarters. The recommendation !hat 
co-ordination between the United Nations and the special
ized agencies should be strengthened was also very useful 
since its implementation would make possible a bctter use 
of the available premises, funds, and staff. ln !hat connex
ion , his delegation opposed any proposai to recruit more 
temporary staff to service conferences. 

35. With regard to the offer of the Austrian Government 
to accommodate a certain number of units of the Secre· 
tariat in Vienna, it should be pointed out thal because of 
the many important meetings held in Vienna in recent 
years, the Austrian authorities had gaincd con si de rabi.: 
experience with conferences. FurthemJOre, as the Austrian 
Chancellor had pointed out to the General Asscmbly on JI 
November 1974 (2279th plenary meeting), Austria's policy 
of neutrality was a valuable stabilizing factor which made 
Vienna an ideal place for holding international conferences. 
The Austrian Government's offcr was ali the more gencrous 
in that the pre mises would be placed at the Orpni7at ion's 
disposai free. It was therefore to be hopcd that the General 
Assembly would acccpt it. The Secrctary-Gencral shouiJ 
submit at the thirtieth session a full report on the 
possibility of transferring certain Secretariat units to 
Vienna. 

36. Finally, he thanked the Under-Secrctary-Gcncral for 
Conference Services and his staff for thcir praiseworthy 
efforts to increase the efficiency of the Departmcnt and 
rcduce the cost of its operations. 

The meeting rose at 1.10 p. m. 




